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1. Name

historic  kate Turner House -
and"or common

2. Location

street & number 709 West Main Street 7 NAA - not for publication
clly, town  Magnolia NZA vieinity of congressional district  Fourth .
state Arkansas code 05 county  Colimbia code 027
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—_ district — public X occupied _ agricuiture —— . MUSEUM
_X_ building(s) _X_ private — unoccupied — commercial — . park
- — structure — both —. . work in progress —— educational — X private residence
—_site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment -~ religious
. Object —  inprocess _X_ yes: restricted —— government — scientitic
— being considered — yes; unrestricted — industrial — transportation
no ~ — military ——other:

4. Owner of Properiy

name  ponald M. Moody

street & number 709 West Main Street

city, town Magnolia N/A_. viclnity of state  Arkansas

5. Location of Legal Description

County Clerk's Office
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Inventory Records, Book D, Page 111

sireet & number Columbia County Courthouse, Court Square

cily, town Magnolia state Arkansas §
6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title N/A has this property been_f_!flermined elegible? ____ yes X no
N/A

" tederal ____state ____counly __ local

date

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description \
Condition Check one Check one
— excellent — deteriorated unaltered X__ original site
A_ good — ruins A altered — . moved date

lair — unexposed

Describe the present and original {if known) physical appearance

"SUMMARY

Majestically sited on a corner lot surrounded by large ocak trees, the Kate Turner House
stands as one of few late Victorian houses still extant in Magnolia. Built in 1904,

the house represents the transitional- style of architecture of its peried juxtaposing
the asyrmetrical plan and massing of the late-nineteenth-century Queen Anne style
against the more classical, Colonial Revival taste of the turn-of the century. Features
of the developing Colonial Revival style include the building's steep hip roof with
cross gable, gabled dormer and classically detailed wrap-around porch while its projecting
bays and bell-cast cupola reflect the earlier Queen Anne esthetic. This two and one-half
story, horizontal weatherboarded wood-frame house on brick piers was constructed by local

carpenters following blueprints prepared by the architectural Firm Sidney and Stewart
of Texarkana, Arkansas. . - _

ELABORATION

"

—

The north elevation of the Kate Turner House exemplifies the fine marriage of Queen Anne
and Colonial Revival elements that distinguish the building. A strong vertical orientation
is created by two projecting bays that, together with the receding entrance bay, comprise
this facade. The northwest corner of the facade features a projecting chamfered bay with
an overhanging cross gable. Large rectangular double-hung windows in simply articulated
surrounds with prominent silis, typical inthis structure, pierce each side of this bay
on the first and second story elevations alike, A single square leaded-glass window
appears in the center of the gable end which also features imbricated shingles, a deep
cornice and cornice moulding. This angular chamfered bay is complemented by the turret-
Tike semi-circular bay that defines the opposite {noriheast) corner of the building.

The gently rounded bay, also featuring three rectangular double-hung windows in each
story and imbricated shinglies in the second story facade, terminates in a bell-cast

roof that gracefully rises above the house's steep hip roof and appears as a cupola

in the roofscape. A prominent, though unembellished overhanging ccrnice with simple
cornice moulding enriches the building, following the distinctive 1ines of the pro-
Jecting bays and successfully uniting them with the centiral enirance bay.

The Queen Anne derived verticality of the north elevation is balanced by the delicacy

of the offset classically designed one-story flat-roofed porch that wraps around the
building. In plan, the porch is quite active, projecting first from the front of the
chamfered bay, than extending forward to form a half-circular portico in front of the
principal entrance, and finally receding to wran around, in a sweeping curve following
the profile of the semi-circular northeast bay, to the east side of the house. Simple
round columns, with square blocks forming their bases and capitals, and a full entablature
comprise the porch. The entablature is camwposed of a prominent though unembellished
cornice which is deeper than the cornice that caps the house but detailed sympathetically
with that analogous element, an unornamented frieze and an architrave. A single wood
band distinguished the frieze from the architrave. Though originally constructed of
wood, the porch floor has been covered with concrete (circa 1920) and the sem1§1rCU1aP
concrete steps that lead to the porch were also constructed at that time. A single door
with oval light and transom is located in the top of these steps, placed asymmetrically

in the facade adjacent to the chamfered bay. This door leads directly into the dining
roon.
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Although the north elevation of the Kate Turner House 1s its most esthetically
pleasing facade, its plan renders the east elevation the building's principal
facade, The semicircular bay and wrap-around porch that so distinguish
the north side of the house are much in evidence here. The porch projects
forward once again, at a 90 degres angle, to articulate the change in facades
more abruptly than the curving northeast corner allows and a range of steps
located at the center of this rectilinear part of the porch provides the
principal access to the house. Another single door with rectangular light
and transom flanked by two rectangular windows of s1ightly smaller proportions
than those of the north elevation pierce the first story of the east elevation
and two 1ike designed windows appear in the second story facade. As in the
north elevation, the steeply pitched hip roof rises above the principal
facade of the building, but here the roofscape is enriched by a self-consciously
(&__ Colonial dormer as well as by the bell-cast cupola. The gable-roofed dormer
is faced with imbricated shingles and penetrated by a round-arched double-hung
window. Cornice moulding and gable-end returns complete the dormer. The
east facade of the house was altered circa 1918 by the addition of a one-story
flat-roofed structure at the south extreme of this elevation. The small
addition, which is clad in the same weatherboard that faces the original
part of the structure and features three narrow double-hung rectangular
windows placed side by side, is not unsympathetic to the design of the

original section of the house. A single door with an oval beveled glass light
leads into the addition from the front porch.
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Neither the west (rear) nor the south (side) elevation of the building 1is

nearly as distinguished as the finely articulated north and east facades

of the house, but they do reveal much information about its physical evolution,

The asymmetrical plan of the building is evident in its west elevation

where a hip-roofed arm of the house, sT1ightly Tower in height than the

front and north elevations, projects from the side of the chamfered bay.

Two rectangular casement windows appear in the second floor elevation of

this facade. Also prominent on the west elevation of the building are the

enciosure of a one-story shed-roofed porch and the addition of a long,
- narrow one-story hip-roofed storage room, i
In 1922, the appearance of the building was impacted by the attachment of
a one-story one room maid's quarters, previously located elsewhere on the
grounds, to the southwest corner of the house. The maid's quarters,
constructed in 1904 with the Kate Turner House and built of Tike materials,
- has one large rectangular double-hung window on its west facade. After the
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structure was moved next to the house, its side (south) porch was enclosed,

In 1976 the present owner of the house enclosed the area left open between
the two buildings with glass and sliding glass doors.

The south elevation, though esthetically undistinguished, clearly shows
the two one-story additions to the house., The second story and hip
roof of the predominant 1904 section of the house rise behind the later
additions orienting and unifying this secondary facade.

The typically Victorian asymmetrical plan of the Kate Turner House provides
a series of spacious rooms. On the first floor, a large foyer offers
access to all dwelling rooms. The parlor and dining room are located on
the north side of the house while the kitchen occupies the rear (south}
end of the house. The entrance foyer contains the principal stairway
and a fireplace was provided adjacent to the stairs, Upstairs, three
bedrooms are arranged on either side of the central stairhall. Interior
details of the building are surprisingly plain, lacking any distinctive
ornamentation but in keeping with the iclassicism of the Colonial Revival
taste, Decoration is most evident in the central staircase, fireplace
mantels, and window surround corner blocks. Since 1972, the house has
been the subject of continuing restoration efforts by its owner and plans
are being made to restore three fireplaces to working order.

A one and one-half story out-building survives at the southwest corner of
the Kate Turner House site. Built as a carriage house and since used as
2 barn, the lofty gable-roofed single pile structure with shed-roofed
lean-to is clad in weatherboard similar to that found on the dwelling
house. The roofs are constructed of corrugated metal. The owner also
plans to restore the carriage house to near-original condition.
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" 8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—_prehistoric ____ archeclogy-prehistoric .. community planning ___ landscape architecture ____ religion

___ 14001499 ___ archeology-historic —_ conservation — law — Ssclience

___1500-1599 __ . agriculture —— RCONOMICS — literature — Sculpture

__1600-1699 _X_architecture —__ education — . military — . socialf

—1700-1798 ____art —engineering —— music humanitarian

—— 1800-1899 __ commerce — exploration/settiement ___ philosophy — theater

—X_ 1900- —— communications — industry — politics/government __ transportation
- invention — Other (specify)

Specific dates 1004 Builder/Architect Sidney & Stewart

-

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

At the time of its construction, the finely detailed and elegantly finished Kate
Turner House was acclaimed by a local newspaper as one of the most handsome and
most costly homes in Magnolia, then a developing agricultural town. Today, it
stands as one of few late Victorian homes stil) extant in the city. Built as a
residence Tor J. W. Turner, then owner and operator of Turner Hardware Company,
and his wife Kate Kelso Turner on land given to her hy her father, J.M. Kelso.
The Kelsos werce a picneer family in Tagnolia. Kelso, originally of OxTord,
Mississippi, surveyed the originai site of the Magnolia court sanare, nracticed
law in Magrolia for over sixty years, and seryved in the Arkansags State House of
Representatives. In addition to its historical associations, the house is not
only unique in terms of 1ts suryival in Magnolia, but is also significant as a
fine exawple of the transitional style of architecture that developed in Arkansas
around the turn of the century. While the asymmetrical plan and massing of the
house recall the architecture of the late-nineteenth century, its steep hip roof,
cross gable and classical porch and interior detailing suggest an interest in the
burgeoning Colonial Revival style. Particularly noteworthy are the juxtaposition
of elements of these two phases of architecture as eyidenced by the relationship
of the delicate wrap-around porch to the massive projecting bays of the principal
and nerth elevations, and {he tensicn in the roofscape created by the contrast of
the bell-cast cupola with the gable-roofed dormer on the east, the projecting cross
. gable on the north, and the dominantly rising hip roof. In spite of additions to the
rear of the house, the principal facades of the Kate Turner House retain compelling
integrity of arciitectural form. Still as commanding in tae Magnolia Lownscape as
it was at_the time of its construction, the building survives in a fine state of
preservation to communicate the elements intrinsic to the transitional style that
was so pivotal in the development of Arkansas' architectural history.
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" 87 Major Bibliographical References

1. Banner News, local newspaper of Magnolia, Arkansas, June 16, 1904 p.3; September 22,
1804 p.3; October 20, 1904 p.3; March 31, 1921 p. 3' and December 3, 1953 p.1.

2. Interview with Mr. Jim Brown, November 20, 1980, Magnolia, Arkansas

1C. Geographical Daila

Acreage of nominated propenty 2 _acres

Quadrangle name _Magnolia Auadrangle Quadrangle scale 1:24000
UMT References
Alas) [alzi6l819.0] o T N S T R
Zone  Easting Northing Zone Easling - Northing
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Verbal boundary deseription and justification -

Beginning at the Northeast corner of Lot 20 of the Kelso and Sm1th Addition to the City
of Magnolia and run West 400 feet, thence south 210 feet, thence East 400 feet, thence
North 210 feet to the point of beginning

List all states and ¢ounties for properties overlapping state or county houndaries

state N/A . code county ' code

state code county code

i1. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Donald M. Moody & Walter Petty, edited Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

organization Property Owner date  May 5, 1981
street & number 709 West Main Street ' telephone  (501) 234-6011
city or town state

12. State Hisltoric Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated signiticance of this property within the state is:

— national  ——. state —X local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historle Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law B9~
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusiop in the National Register and certify that it hag been evaluated
according to the crileria and procedures set forth by jhe Herita(ge onservation ang Recreatiqn Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature
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